City of Geneva, Illinois
Local Historic District & Landmarks
Property Inventory Survey

GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

409 Franklin Street

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (PIN):

12-03-454-008

HISTORIC NAME: N/A

COMMON NAME: N/A

DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: 1962

SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES: N/A

ARCHITECT: Unknown

BUILDER: Unknown

WILSON BROTHERS: [ AUGUST [ OSCAR [ BOTH

ARCHITECTURAL DATA:

ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: Colonial Revival

OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: Simple Plan, Rectangle

LOCAL SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

NUMBER OF STORIES: 2

[ ] significant

FOUNDATION MATERIAL: Poured Concrete

|:| Contributing

PRIMARY WALL MATERIAL(S): Brick, Clapboard

|:| Non-Contributing — Built After 1987

|:| Non-Contributing — Reversible Alterations

FRONT PORCH: Partial

|z| Non-Contributing — Irreversible Alterations

VISIBLE SIDE PORCH: N/A

HISTORIC DISTRICT LOCATION:

ENTRY DOOR(S): Non Historic

IE Central Geneva NRHD

WINDOW MATERIAL: Wood

|:| North Geneva NRHD

WINDOW STYLE: Double Hung, 6/6

|E| Local Geneva HD

PRIMARY ROOF FORM: Front Gabled

|:| Not in HD / Individual Historic Landmark

PRIMARY ROOF MATERIAL: Asphalt

NR DISTRICT SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

VISIBLE CHIMNEY: Yes

|:| Contributing

|E| Non-Contributing

CHIMNEY MATERIAL: Brick

|:| Not Applicable / Not in NR District

OTHER SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES:
N/A

HPC ACTION:

|:| Demolition Approved:

Other HPC Action: 12 21.04 Add'n; 11.15.05 Patio




City of Geneva, Illinois
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ADDITIONAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

409 Franklin Street

BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION:

The property does not exist on any Sanborn Fire Insurance maps up
until 1945. In 1957, the earliest mention of the site in the Geneva
Republican, a two apartment building at the address was purchased
from the Hecker family by Kenneth Payleitner.

The property holds significance due to its association with Kenneth
Payleitner, a revered figure in the Geneva community. The home,
likely built in or before 1957, was once owned by Payleitner, a World
War Il veteran and esteemed educator. He taught at Fourth and
Sixth Street School and later served as principal at Harrison Street
School. His contributions extended beyond academics; he coached
baseball, football, and track, leaving a lasting impact on students.
Upon retirement in 1985, the library at Harrison Street School was
named in his honor, reflecting his influential role in education and
positive influence on many in Geneva (The Geneva Republican,
August 11th, 2011).

SOURCES:

GHPC Case Studies; GHM Archives; 2016 Central North Geneva NRHP Update; 1869
Bird's Eye View of Geneva; Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; Kane County Land
Records; Geneva, lllinois: A History of Its Times and Places; Geneva, lllinois: 150
LReminders of 150 Years: Wilson Brathers - Contractors & Builders1905-1931 by

CONTRIBUTING ACCESSORY STRUCTURES:

AS1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:
N/A

AS2 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:
N/A

CONTRIBUTING LANDSCAPE FEATURES:

GENERAL DESCRIPTION:
N/A

1999
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	BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION: The property does not exist on any Sanborn Fire Insurance maps up until 1945. In 1957, the earliest mention of the site in the Geneva Republican, a two apartment building at the address was purchased from the Hecker family by Kenneth Payleitner.

The property holds significance due to its association with Kenneth Payleitner, a revered figure in the Geneva community. The home, likely built in or before 1957, was once owned by Payleitner, a World War II veteran and esteemed educator. He taught at Fourth and Sixth Street School and later served as principal at Harrison Street School. His contributions extended beyond academics; he coached baseball, football, and track, leaving a lasting impact on students. Upon retirement in 1985, the library at Harrison Street School was named in his honor, reflecting his influential role in education and positive influence on many in Geneva (The Geneva Republican, August 11th, 2011).

In 1962, the Geneva Lutheran Church House (parsonage) was constructed on the site, and still stands today. While the materials and style of the house are the same today, an addition above the garage, balcony over the porch, and full porch extension along the front facade have all been added since that construction. It existed as the parsonage for most of its history.

The property changed hands most recently on November 12th, 2004, when Laura and Mark Grossklag purchased it. They received a permit for an addition/remodel in 2005, which is likely when many of the changes from the original building were made.
	SOURCES: GHPC Case Studies; GHM Archives; 2016 Central North Geneva NRHP Update; 1869 Bird's Eye View of Geneva; Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; Kane County Land Records; Geneva, Illinois: A History of Its Times and Places; Geneva, Illinois: 150 Reminders of 150 Years; Wilson Brothers - Contractors & Builders, 1905-1931 by Donald Wilson (2002); Geneva Republican
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